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KMU & Associates

weswwwws Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AVIYAN LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited ("the
Microfinance”) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31, 2081
(corresponding to July 16, 2024) and the Statement of Profit or Loss, the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and according to the explanation given to us, the
accompanying Financial Statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of the
Microfinance as at Ashad 31, 2081 (corresponding to July 16, 2024) and its financial performance,
change in equilty and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those slandards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financral Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Microfinance in accordance
with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical
requirements thal are relevant to our audit of the financial statement in Nepal, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of
Cada of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those mallers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
the audit of the Financial Statements of current period and Include the most significant assessed risk
of material misstalement (whether or not due to fraud) identified, including those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matter, In arriving at our audit opinion abave, together with our key audit procedures 1o address those
malters and, as required for public interest entities, our results from those procedures. These matters
were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of and solely for
the purpose of, our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matiers.
S.N. | Key Audit Matters | Auditor's Response
1. | Information Technology
The Microfinance’s key financial accounting | Our audit approach regarding obtaining P—
and reporting processes are highly | reliance on Microfinance’s IT systems | = .22
dependent on the automated controls over | included the following procedures: [x/ \&
the Microfinance's IT systems. There is a (l{ Lalrour | %

Kupandols, Lalitpur-10, Nepal | Tol. No.:+977-01.5551918 | Emall: info:kmuassociatesi@gmail.com | Web; www.kmu.com.np
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S.N.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

risk that gaps in the change management,
segregation of duties or user access
management controls (in relation to key
financial accounting and reporting systems)
may undermine our ability to place some
reliance thereon in our audit.

a. We tested the design, operation and
effectiveness of control over providing,
denying/removing and appropriateness
of access rights on the accounting and
reporting system of the microfinance.

b. Obtained and reviewed the change
management policies and for a sample
of changes in inputs and control
functions on the system, has been
reviewed to confirm that changes had
been performed in line with approved
decisions.

c. Tested a sample of the automated
controls that are designed to enforce
appropriate segregation of duties.

d. We have tested a sample of outputs
particularly  interest income and
expenses on loans and advances of the
system through manual calculations.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per NRB Unified Directives for
Microfinance, the Microfinance shall
measure impairment loss on loans and
advances at the higher of:

» Amount derived as per the norms
prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for
loan loss provision; and

» Amount determined as per incurred loss
model  (individual and  collective
impairment loss) as per NFRS 9.

As per the norms prescribed by NRB,
provision at prescribed rate should be
created on loans and advances based on
overdue status of loans and advances as
well as utilization status of the facility, status
of security, borrower's whereabouts etc. As
per NFRS, impairment of loans and
advances should be made on individual
impairment basis for loans and advances
that are individually significant and
collective impairment basis for
homogeneous groups of loans that are not
considered individually significant. On
individual impairment, amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows. Under
collective impairment, loss is determined
after taking into account the Historical Loss
Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk
and Management's experienced judgment
as to whether current economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual level of

Our audit approach regarding verification of
impairment of loans and advances included:

a. Review of the overdue status of loans
and advances by obtaining data from
the system and matched the same with
the NRB 2.2 report. .

b. Sample credit files were reviewed,
among other things, from the
perspective of utilization of loans and
advances for intended purpose by way
of account scrutiny.

c. Expected future cash flows from the
individually  significant loans and
advances with indication of impairment
are assessed on the basis of realizable
value of collateral securities based on
management estimate.

d. Grouping of homogeneous groups of
loans was assessed on the basis of
nature and purpose of loans and data of
historical loss experience in portfolios
are assessed on the basis of past due
data from the system as well as data of
loan loss provisions of the defined group
in the past.
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S.N.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor's Response

inherent losses at the reporting date is like
to be grealer or less than that suggested by
historical experience.

Given the fact that impairment of loans and
advances under incurred loss model require
assessment of future cash Nows as well as
historical loss experiences of portfolios.
Further, impairment of loans and advances
under NRB norms for loan loss provisioning
will require assessment of overdue status of
loans and advances and proper utilization of
loan for intended purpose. Hence,
assessment of availability and accuracy of
required data for impairment of lcans and
advances under incurred loss model as well
as NRB provisioning norms is regarded as
key audit matters.

Interest Income

The interest income of the microfinance has
been recegnized on accrual basis and
following the Interest Income Recognition
Guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.
Since, interest income is the primary source
of revenue for the microfinance, we have
considered it as a key audit matter.

Our audit approach included clear
understanding of the Microfinance's IT
Systemn i.e. how the interest income is daily
accrued regarding the loans and advances.

We have test checked the interest income
booking with manual computation and we did

not find any deviation.

Furthermore, we have lest checked the
calculation of interest suspense based on
NRB Income Recognition Guidelines.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 5.4.1 of the accompanying Financial Statements, which describes the
Microfinance’s non-disclosure of segment reporting information required under NFRS 8, due lo
practical difficuities in allocation of certain common costs and expenses lo specific reportable
segments. Management has represanted that due to the nature of the business and the manner in
which internal financial information is currently maintained, it is not practicable to provide reliable
segment-wise financial information. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Managemenl is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report bul does nol include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

QOur opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be malerially
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misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement
of the other information; we are required to report that fact.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matier to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Financial Statements in
accordance with the prevailing accounting practices, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Financial Statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the Financial Statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Microfinance’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the management either
intends to liquidate the Microfinance or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0O.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Microfinance's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report thal includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the NSAs will always detect a matenal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this Financial Statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of matérial misstatement of financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

» Conclude on appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Microfinance’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Microfinance to cease to continue as a going concern.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair representation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compiled with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b. The accounts and records of the Microfinance have been maintained as required by law and
practice in a manner to reflect the real affairs of the Microfinance.

c. The Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Financial Performance and the Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account of the
Microfinance.

d. In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Microfinance has
maintained adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in
accordance with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

e. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us,
except for the matters disclosed in Note 4.14 of the accompanying Financial Statements relating
to instances of embezziement of funds; legal proceedings; and associated accounting treatment,
the Board of Directors, members of management team or any employee of the Microfinance have
not acted contrary to the provision of law relating to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to
the Microfinance deliberately or acted in a manner that would jeopardized the interest and
security of the Microfinance and the business of the Microfinance appears to have been
conducted satisfactorly.

Roshan Shrestha, CA
Partner

K.M.U. & Associates, Chartered Accountants

Place: Kathmandu
Date: 2082/02/28

UDIN: 250611CA017606UDhp
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Statement of Financial Position

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
Particulars Note "As on "As on Ashadh 31,
Ashadh 31, 2081" 2080 (Restated)"

Assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 4.1 60,922,953 117,195,775
Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 11,704,847 11,704,847
Placement with Bank & Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4 - -
Other Trading Assets 4.5 - -
Loans and Advance to MFIs & Cooperatives 4.6 - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 4.7 2,163,332,967 1,793,861,117
Investment Securities 4.8 - -
Current Tax Assets 4.9 2,844,005 2,600,161
Investment Property 4.10 - -
Property and Equipment 411 25,073,447 37,307,609
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.12 1,286,368 1,601,193
Deferred Tax Assets 4.13 7,419,886 2,686,402
Other Assets 4.14 7,118,755 11,088,480
Total Assets 2,279,703,229 1,978,045,583
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 4.15 - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.16 - -
Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17 - -
Deposits from Customers 4.18 237,964,499 208,425,262
Borrowing 4.19 1,757,575,787 1,451,889,507
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 4.20 - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13 - -
Other Liabilities 421 33,086,601 42,144,740
Debt Securities Issued 4.22 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.23 - -
Total Liabilities 2,028,626,887 1,702,459,510
Equity

Share Capital 4.24 250,000,000 250,000,000
Share Premium - -
Retained Earnings (76,971,722) (10,134,882)
Reserves 4.25 78,048,064 35,720,956
Total Equity 251,076,342 275,586,073
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,279,703,229 1,978,045,583
Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 4.26 - -
Net assets value per share 100.43 110.23

The accompanying notes are integral

part of these financial statements.

As per Our Report of even date

Baburam Thapa Bhojraj Bhattarai Prabin Jha Keshab Thapa
Chairman Director Director Independent Director
Neemu Sherpa Umesh Dahal Narayan Prasad Prasai CA. Roshan Shrestha

Partner
K.M.U. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Public Director Public Director

Director

Tejendra Sharma Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Top Bahadur Thapa
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Panauti, Kavre
Date: 2082-02-28
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the period ended Ashadh 31, 2081

Particulars Notes "For the period ended | "For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080"

Interest Income 4.27 284,799,613 303,857,506
Interest Expense 4.28 208,136,056 230,363,503
Net Interest Income 76,663,556 73,494,003
Fee and Commission Income 4.29 30,146,667 36,656,861
Fee and Commission Expense 4.30 - -
Net Fee and Commission Income 30,146,667 36,656,861
Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income 106,810,223 110,150,864
Net Trading Income 431 - -
Other Operating Income 4.32 - -
Total Operating Income 106,810,223 110,150,864
"Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other 4.33 17,036,363 (1,276,578
losses"
Net Operating Income 89,773,860 111,427,442
Operating Expense
Personnel Expenses 4.34 72,152,819 72,374,249
Other Operating Expenses 4.35 33,530,907 27,731,311
Depreciation & Amortization 4.36 13,310,822 11,734,935
Operating Profit (29,220,688) (413,053)
Non Operating Income 4.37 - -
Non Operating Expense 4.38 - -
Profit before Income Tax (29,220,688) (413,053)
Income Tax Expense 4.39
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expense (4,753,996) (1,385,012)
Profit for the year (24,466,692) 971,959
Profit Attributable To:
Equity Holders of The Financial Institution (24,466,692) 971,959
Profit For The Year (24,466,692) 971,959
Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings Per Share (9.79) 0.40
Diluted Earnings Per Share (9.79) 0.40

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Baburam Thapa Bhojraj Bhattarai
Chairman Director
Neemu Sherpa Umesh Dahal

Director Public Director

Tejendra Sharma Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Panauti, Kavre
Date: 2082-02-28

As per Our Report of even date

Top Bahadur Thapa
Chief Financial Officer

3Y | ariies ufdaed, Roco/0e?

Prabin Jha

Director

Narayan Prasad Prasai

Keshab Thapa
Independent Director

CA. Roshan Shrestha

Public Director Partner

K.M.U. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Director


Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Statement of Distributable Profit/Loss
For the Period Ended 31 Ashadh 2081
(As per NRB Regulation)

Particulars "For the period ended | "For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080"

Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss (24,466,692) 971,959
Appropriation
a. General Reserve - (194,392)
b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund - -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund - (9,720)
e. Employees training fund - -
f. Customer Protection Fund - (9,720)
g. Other

i. Fair Value Reserves - -

ii. Investment Adjustment Reserve - -

iii. Other Adjustments - -
Share issue cost charged directly to equity - (5,515,061)
Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment (24,466,692) (4,756,933)
Regulatory Adjustments:
a. Interest Receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received(+) (28,580,154) (9,981,227)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts(-)/reversal(+) - -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment(-)/reversal(+) - -
d. Short provision for possible losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/ - -

reversal(+)
e. Deferred Tax Assets recognized(-)/reveral(+) (4,733,484) (1,385,012)
f. Goodwill recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognized (-)/reversal(+) - -
h. Actuarial Loss recognized (-)/reversal(+) - -
i. Other - -
Loan loss provision reversal of Rescheduled/Restructured Loan (9,042,420) (795,187)
Net Profit for the year end 31st Ashadh 2080 avaiable for (66,822,750) (16,918,359)
distribution
Opening Retained Earning As on 1st Shrawan (10,134,882) 6,347,267
Adjustments(+/-) (14,090) 436,210
Distribution:
Bonus Share issued -
Cash Dividend Paid -
Total Distributable profit or (loss) as on year end (76,971,722) (10,134,882)
Annualized Distributable Profit/Loss Per Share (30.79) (6.93)

As per Our Report of even date

Baburam Thapa Bhojraj Bhattarai Prabin Jha Keshab Thapa
Chairman Director Director Independent Director
Neemu Sherpa Umesh Dahal Narayan Prasad Prasai CA. Roshan Shrestha

Partner
K.M.U. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Director Public Director Public Director

Tejendra Sharma Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Top Bahadur Thapa
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Panauti, Kavre
Date: 2082-02-28
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Director


Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended Ashadh 31, 2081

" For the period ended

" For the period ended

Commission and fees paid
Cash payment to employees

S Ashadh 31, 2081 " Ashadh 31, 2080 "
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 239,434,285 288,014,289
Fees and other income received 30,146,667 36,656,861
Dividend received - -
Receipts from other operating activities - -
Interest paid (16,609,089) (16,381,533)

(69,938,200)

(72,374,249)

Other expense paid

(42,444,257)

(27,731,311)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

140,589,406

208,184,057

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Other trading assets

Loans and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

(340,100,886)
2,836,825

(2)

293,797,715
(8,651,270)

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

29,539,237
305,686,280
(5,200,922)

(103,149,131)
(238,979,416)
(18,037,231)

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid

133,349,939

133,164,722

Income taxes paid

(243,845)

(2,964,510)

Net cash flow from operating activities

133,106,094

130,200,212

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Others

(224,086)

(1,512,664)

Net cash used in investing activities

(1,512,664)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities
Repayment of debt securities

Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liability

Receipts from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

(189,154,829)

97,500,000
(213,981,971)

Other receipt/payment - (5,704,882
Net cash from financing activities (189,154,829) (122,186,853
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (56,272,821) 6,500,695
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 117,195,775 110,695,081
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 60,922,953 117,195,775

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Baburam Thapa
Chairman

Bhojraj Bhattarai
Director

Neemu Sherpa
Director

Umesh Dahal
Public Director

Tejendra Sharma Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Top Bahadur Thapa
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Panauti, Kavre
Date: 2082-02-28
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Prabin Jha
Director

Narayan Prasad Prasai
Public Director

As per Our Report of even dat

Keshab Thapa
Independent Director

CA. Roshan Shrestha
Partner
K.M.U. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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Director


Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended 31st Ashadh, 2081

1. Reporting Entity

Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited ('the Microfinance') is domiciled and incorporated in Nepal as a D Class
licensed financial institution as per Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Microfinance is a limited liability
company registered in Office of the Company Registrar on 2075/12/25. The microfinance obtained license to carry
out the financial transactions on 2076/06/01 from the Nepal Rastra Bank.

Being D Class licensed institution, major activities of the microfinance include deprived sector lending under the
group guarantee without collateral in order to enhance economic and social factors of the members. Also, the
Microfinance provides additional micro enterprise loan to its members within the limit as prescribed by the Nepal
Rastra Bank from time to time. The major sources of fund are member savings, public deposits along with loan from
other BFls and Equity holders’ fund.

2. Basis of Preparation

The Financial Statements of the Microfinance, have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSs) issued by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB) and pronounced by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The Financial Statements are based on the formats mandated by the Directive No. 4 of The Unified Directives, 2079
as made applicable by the Nepal Rastra Bank(NRB).

2.1. Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statement has been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs)
as published by the ASB and pronounced by the ICAN and in the format issued by NRB in directives No.4 of
NRB Directive 2079.

2.2. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The Microfinance follows Nepalese financial year based on Nepali calendar starting from 1st Shrawan and
ending on last day of Ashadh.

These Financial Statements consist two Statement of Financial Position as of 31st Ashadh 2081 and 31st
Ashadh 2080 as required by NAS-1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Microfinance has also
presented two Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, two statements
of Changes in Equity and two Statements of Cash Flows for the period ended as of 31st Ashadh, 2081 and
31st Ashadh, 2080 along with the necessary and related notes.

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statements as per the provision of The Companies Act, 2063.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors’s 109th meeting and
recommended for the approval by shareholders in the 5th Annual General Meeting of the company.

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Microfinance operates. The financial information presented has been
rounded off to nearest rupee except where otherwise stated.

2.4. Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of Financial Statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Continuous evaluation is done on the
estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in
current and future periods.
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2.5. Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods except where deviations have been
explicitly mandated by the applicable accounting standards presented in the Financial Statements.

New Standards Issued but not yet effective

IFRS-9, Financial Instrument which replaces the existing standard relating to Financial Instrument which
provide for the expected credit loss model for the impairment of the financial assets. This statement is
neither issued nor made applicable by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). Thus, the
impairment of financial assets are measured, presented and disclosed using NAS-39 Financial Instrument-
Recognition and Measurements and NFRS-7 Financial Instrument- Disclosure.

2.6. Discounting

The non-current assets and liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if required by
the NFRS.

3. Significant Accounting Policies
3.1. Basis of Measurement

The Financial Statements of Microfinance have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
Statement of Cash Flows which is prepared on cash basis.

3.2. Cash & Cash Equivalent

The Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of cashflow statement include cash in hand, balances with
banks and financial institutions, money at call and short notice and highly liquid financial assets with original
maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to and insignificant risk of changes
in their fair values and are used by the Microfinance in the management of its short-term commitments.

Cash and Cash equivalents includes cash in hands, deposits with BFIs and other short-term investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

3.3. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
3.3.1. Recognition

The Microfinance recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value
on initial recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities, other
than those carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are added to the fair value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried
at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.3.2. Classification and Measurement

The financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the
basis of business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets.

3.3.2.1. Financial assets
Financial assets are classified under three categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Measured at amortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective
Interest Rate (‘EIR’) method less impairment, if any. The amortization of EIR and loss
arising from an impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Measured at fair value through OCI:

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both, selling financial assets and collecting contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest, are subsequently measured at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income. Fair value movements are recognized in the Other
Comprehensive Income (OCI).
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Equity Instrument which are not held for trading and initially recognized as held for
trading for which the Microfinance makes an irrevocable election to carry the changes
in fair value of the instrument through OCI are measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income.

c.Measured at fair value through profit or loss:

The Microfinance classifies the financials assets as Fair Value through Profit or Loss if
they are held for trading or designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss.

Any other financial asset not classified as either amortized cost or FVOCI, is classified as
FVTPL.

3.3.2.2. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified under two categories as required by NFRS 9, namely:
a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at Fair Value
through Profit or Loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable
to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent
changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:

All financial liabilities other than measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

3.3.3. De-recognition

The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

3.3.4. Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The

Microfinance follows three levels of the fair-value-hierarchy are described below:
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable or
valuations of quoted for similar instrument in active markets or quoted prices for identical or similar
instrument in inactive markets; and

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

Investment in Unquoted Equity Instrument are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could
not be ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

3.3.5. Impairment

The Microfinance reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date
to assess whether an impairment loss should be provided in the Statement of Profit or Loss. The
Management’s judgement is extensively used in the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about
a number of factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions
made.

Carveout adopted for computation of impairment charge

The Microfinance has opted to apply carveout on para 5.5 of NFRS 9 on impairment of financial assets measured at
amortized cost. Accordingly, individual and collective impairment loss amount calculated as per NFRS is compared
with the impairment provision required under NRB directive no. 2. Higher of the amount derived from these
measures is taken as impairment loss for loans and receivables.
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3.4. Trading Assets

Financial assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are
recognized on trade date, when the Microfinance enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties,
and are normally derecognized when sold. They are initially measured at fair value, with transaction costs
taken to profit or loss. Subsequent changes in their fair values are recognized in profit or loss in ‘Net trading
income’. However, the Microfinance does not have such assets to be recognized as trading assets as on
Ashadh end 2081.

3.5. Derivative Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivative instruments include transactions like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. Derivative financial instruments are
initially measured at fair value on the contract date and are subsequently re-measured to fair value at each
reporting date. However, the Microfinance does not have such instruments as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition
of the asset.

Depreciation: The Microfinance depreciates property, plant and equipment following Written Down Value
method applying the Depreciation rates prescribed by Income Tax Act, 2058. The rates used for depreciation
of assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of Property, Plant and Equipment are

as follows:

Type of Asset Useful Life Depreciation Rate
Computer & Accessories 10-11 Years 25%

Vehicles 13-14 Years 20%

Furniture & Fixtures 10-11 Years 25%

Equipment & Others - Equipment 10-11 Years 25%

Other Assets 10-11 Years 25%

. Amortized Over Life of Intangible

Intangible Assets Assets on Straight Line Basis

The Microfinance adopts cost model for entire class of Property, Plant and Equipment. It has not measured
any Property Plant and Equipment at revaluation model and at fair value. The items of Property, Plant and
Equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of newly acquired assets is charged based upon the date of invoice and assets having acquisition
cost less than NPR. 2,000 have been written down as an expense for the period in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

3.7. Goodwill/Intangible Assets

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Intangible assets are recognized separately from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual
or other legal rights, and their fair value can be measured reliably. These intangible assets are recognized at
historical cost less impairment / amortization over their estimated useful life.

3.8. Investment Property

Investment properties include land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and
equipment and non-current assets held for sale. It includes assets which are held for capital appreciation or
for rental to others or held for undetermined future use. It also includes land, land and building acquired by
the Microfinance as non-banking assets but not sold as on the reporting date. However, the Microfinance
does not have Investment Property as on Ashadh end 2081.
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3.9. Income Tax
Tax expenses comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
3.9.1. Current Tax

Current tax is the income tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the
extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or OCl in which case it is recognized in equity
or in Other Comprehensive Income. Current tax is the amounts expected or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years.

3.9.2. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax
purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates expected to apply in the periods in which the assets will
be realized or the liabilities settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise in the same tax
reporting group and relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and when the group
has a legal right to offset.

3.10. Deposit, Debt Securities Issued and Subordinated Liabilities
3.10.1.Deposits

Deposits by members and public depositors are initially recognized at fair value, plus for those
financial liabilities not at Fair Value through Profit and Loss. The transaction price is considered as the
fair value for measuring the deposits.

3.10.2.Debt Securities Issued

Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently
at their amortized cost using effective interest method except where the bank designates liabilities at
Fair Value through Profit or Loss. However, the Microfinance does not have such Debt Securities as on
Ashadh end, 2081.

3.10.3.Subordinate Liabilities

These are the liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated
notes issued, borrowings etc. During the reporting period the Microfinance do not have any such
liabilities.

3.11. Provisions, other Liabilities Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognized, if as a result of a past event, the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation at that date. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate and are reversed if there is no probability of outflow of resources.

The contingent liabilities are the liabilities for which it is uncertain as to whether it will become an obligation
as it depends on the occurrence of an uncertain future event. These amounts are off-balance sheet items
and are disclosed when there is a possible obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of
resources.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Microfinance
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
Microfinance does not have such contingent liabilities and onerous contracts as on Ashadh end 2081.

3.12. Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Microfinance
and the consideration can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria shall also be met
for revenue recognition:
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3.12.1.Interest Income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets classified as
available- for-sale and financial instruments designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss, interest
income or expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. The calculation of effective interest rate includes all charges and fee paid or received
that are integral part of the effective interest only if considered necessary. Such a charges are not
amortized over the life of the loan and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates
the income that would have derived under effective interest method and are recognized directly in
statement of profit and loss.

The interest income recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss includes the following:

e Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost calculated on an effective interest
rate method, except for impaired loans and advances. These financial assets include investment in
government securities, investment in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, reverse repos, inter-bank
lending, etc.

e Aspercarve out on NFRS 9 Para 5.4, the Microfinance has not included the fees paid or received in loans
and advances that are immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably the effective interest rate and
have recognized them directly as revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

e Aspercarve out on NFRS 9, Para 5.4, the Microfinance has applied the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off either partially or fully.

e |nterest on investment securities measured at fair value is calculated on effective interest rate.

¢ Income on discounted instruments like bills purchased, documents negotiation is recognized over the
period of discounting on accrual basis using effective interest rate.

e Interestincome on all trading assets is considered to be incidental to the Group’s trading operations and
are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading
income.

e The Microfinance has suspended the interest income where there is reasonable doubt about the
collectibility of the interest in case of Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are
more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective of the net reliazable value of collateral.

3.12.2.Fee and Commission Income.

Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided.

3.12.3.Dividend Income.

Dividend income received from equity shares is recognized in the books when the right to receive the
dividend is established.

3.12.4.Net Trading Income.

Net Trading Income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair value, related capital gain/loss
and dividend from financial assets ‘Held for Trading’. Trading expenses are deducted from the trading
income and the amount net of trading expenses are disclosed in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.12.5.Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss.

Net income from other financial instrument measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss includes all
gains/(losses) raised from the revaluation of financial instrument at fair value.

3.13. Interest Expenses

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss using
effective interest rate method. The Microfinance uses ASB carve-outs as mentioned above and treat
coupon rate as effective interest rate.

3.14. Employee Benefits
3.14.1.Short term employee benefits

The Microfinance’s short term employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, allowances, socials
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security expenses, bonuses as provided in the law and other employee related expenses. Short term
employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are charged to statement of profit
and loss as and when the related service is provided.

3.14.2.Post-Employment employee benefits
3.14.2.1. Defined Contribution Plans

Post-Employment benefits plan under which the microfinance pays a fixed contribution
to a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future amounts are
categorized under defined contribution plans. The contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services are rendered by employees.

Provident Fund

Employee provident fund is the defined contribution plan opt by the microfinance.
Complying with The Labor Act, 2074, the microfinance contributes 10% of the Basic salary
and Grade Amount of all the employees to the Approved Retirement Fund, established by
the microfinance. The Microfinance has no further obligations under these plans beyond
its periodic contributions.

Any unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’ in Note 4.21.
3.14.2.2. Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Microfinance’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any
plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate
bonds, that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Microfinance's obligation
and that are denominated in the currency in which the benefit is expected to be paid.
The defined benefit obligation is recognized on the basis of the report of qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. The Microfinance recognizes all actuarial gains and
losses arising from defined benefit plans immediately in OClI and all expenses related to
defined benefits plans in employee benefit are expensed in profit and loss account. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the group, the recognized assets are limited
to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of
economic benefits consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Measurements of the net defined benefit liability comprise the company’s estimation for
the provision based on the employees bylaw.

3.14.2.3. Other Long-Term Benefits:
Leave

Other long-term benefits include those payments which are not due within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

The Microfinance provides accumulated leave benefits under its Employees Byelaw. The
Home leave is accumulated up to 90 days and there is no limit for the accumulation of sick
leave. Accumulated leave benefits are treated as long term benefit liability. Accumulated
leave obligations are calculated based on the company’s estimated provision based on
number of days remaining to avail as on year end.

3.15. Leases

The Microfinance has applied NFRS 16 using the cumulative catch-up approach and therefore comparative
information has not been restated and is presented under NAS 17. The details of accounting policies under
both NAS 17 and NFRS 16 are presented separately below.

Policies applicable from 1 Shrawan 2078

The Microfinance assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The
Microfinance Recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term
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of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items
of office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the Microfinance Recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily
determined, the Microfinance uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
e Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable.

e Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date.

e The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees.
e The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

e Payments of penalties for terminating the lease if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method-assumed to be 10% and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made. The Microfinance remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

e The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a
change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

¢ The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change
in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

e Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Microfinance did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

3.16. Share Capital and Reserves
3.16.1.Share Capital

Financial instruments issued are classified as equity when there is no contractual obligation to transfer
cash, other financial assets or issue available number of own equity instruments. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction net of taxes from the
proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they
are declared.

3.16.2.Reserves
The reserve includes regulatory and free reserves.
a) Statutory General Reserves

20% of the net profit as stated in Bank and financial Institution Act, 2073 (BAFIA) and 50% of
additional amount of Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess of 20%
is set aside to the general reserve.

b) Exchange Equalization Reserve

This is statutory reserve created in compliance with BAFIA. 25% of the revaluation on the foreign
currency computed as per regulatory books is set aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.
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3.17.

3.18.

c) Assets Revaluation Reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and is the requirement in the application of accounting policy for
non-financial assets such as property, equipment, investment property and intangible assets that
are measured following revaluation model. Revaluation reserve often serve as a cushion against
unexpected loss but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent
deterioration in the market values and tax consequences of revaluation. The microfinance hasn’t
followed revaluation model.

d

~

Capital reserve

This is a non-statutory reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such as
the amounts arising from share forfeiture, capital grants and capital reserve arising out of business
combinations. Funds in this reserve are not available for distribution of cash dividend but can be
capitalized by issuing bonus shares upon obtaining prior approval from the central bank.

e

~

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Fund

As per NRB Directives 1% of net profit shall be set aside in the fund for the purpose of corporate
social responsibility. However, the entity is at a loss during the Financial Year ending 31st Ashadh,
2081.

f) Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Microfinance both positive or
negative to this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS
and which shall not be regarded as free reserve for distribution of dividend are recorded in this
reserve. The reserve includes actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan.

~

g) Client protection fund

Client protection fund shall be created at 1% of net profit. In addition to this, 25% of dividend in
excess of 20% shall also allocated to this fund as per NRB Directives. However, the entity is at a loss
during the Financial Year ending 31st Ashadh, 2081.

h) Other reserves

Any other reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose are presented under this by
disclosing account heads.

Earnings per Share (EPS) including diluted EPS

Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss
attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Segment Reporting

The Microfinance's operating segments are organized and managed separately through the respective department/
business managers according to the nature of products and services provided with each segment representing a
strategic business unit. These business units are reviewed by Chief Executive Officer of the Microfinance.

The Microfinance has identified seven segments namely: Koshi Province, Madhesh Province, Bagmati Province,
Gandaki Province, Lumbini Province, Karnali Province and Sudur Pashcim Province as the seven operating segment
and the segment report is set out in Notes 5.4.

Segment reports include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis. The income, expenses, assets & liabilities that cannot be allocated to aforesaid segment or those
related to head office are unallocated. The unallocated items generally comprise of head office assets, head office
expenses, and tax assets and liabilities. The geographical segment has been identified on the basis of the location
of the branches in 7 different provinces of the country.
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
4.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Particulars " As on "Ason
Ashadh 31, 2081 " Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated) "
Cash In Hand 3,120,384 1,416,348
Balances With BFls 57,802,569 115,779,427
Money At Call And Short Notice - -
Other - -
Total 60,922,953 117,195,775
4.2 "Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank"
Particulars " As on "Ason
Ashadh 31, 2081 " Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated) "
Statutory Balances With NRB 11,704,847 11,704,847
Statutory Balances With BFIs - -
Securities Purchased Under Resale Agreement - -
Other Deposit And Receivable From NRB - -
Total 11,704,847 11,704,847
4.3 Placements with Financial Institutions
Particulars " As on "Ason
Ashadh 31, 2081 " Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated) "
"Placements with Domestic Fls" - -
Less: Allowances for Impairment - -
Total - -
4.4 Derivative financial Instrument
Particulars " Ason "Ason
Ashadh 31, 2081 " Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated) "

Held For Trading

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange

Contract

Others

Held For Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap

Currency Swap

Forward Exchange

Contract

Other

Total
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.5 Other Trading Assets

"As on "As on
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Treasury Bills - -

Particulars

Government Bonds - -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate Bonds - -

Equities - -
Other - -
Total - -
Pledged - -
Non-Pledged - -

4.6 Loan and Advances to MFls & Cooperatives

"As on "As on
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Loans To Microfinance Institutions - -

Particulars

Loans To Fls - _

Loans To Cooperative - -

Less: Allowance For Impairment - -
Other - -
Less: Allowances For Impairment - -
Total - -

4.6.1: Allowances for Impairment

"As on "As on
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Balance At Shrawan 1 - -

Particulars

Impairment Loss For The Year: - -

Charge For The Year - -

Recoveries/Reversal - _
Amount Written Off - R
Balance At Ashadh End - -

4.7 Loans and Advances to Customers

"As on "As on

Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 2,209,287,688 1,823,821,475
Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment 5,585,128 6,769,688
Individual impairment 40,369,593 23,190,670
Net amount 2,163,332,967 1,793,861,117
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL
Total 2,163,332,967 1,793,861,117

Particulars

¥ | TR WidaeEd, Roco/0c? ST Gyt fadier e fa7., gHidl-, HTHver==is



Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.7.1: Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Product

Particulars

"As on Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Product

Term Loans

Short Term, Term Loan

Long Term, Term Loan

Hire Purchase Loans

Personal Residential Loans

Staff Loans - -
Other 2,125,374,281 1,785,273,395
Sub Total 2,125,374,281 1,785,273,395
Interest Receivable 83,913,407 38,548,080
Grand total 2,209,287,688 1,823,821,475

4.7.2: Analysis of Loan and Advances - By Collateral

Particulars

"As on Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Secured

Immovable Assets

Government Guarantee

Collateral Of Government Securities

Collateral Of Fixed Deposit Receipt

Group Guarantee

Personal Guarantee

Other Collateral

Sub Total

Unsecured

Grand Total

4.7.3 : Allowances for Impairment

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" | "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Specific Allowances For Impairment
Balance At Shrawan 1 23,190,670 31,236,936
Impairment Loss For The Year:
Charge/(Reversal) For The Year 17,134,418 (4,657,049)
Recoveries/Reversal During The Year -
Write-Offs
Other Movement - (3,389,216)
Balance At Ashadh End 40,325,088 23,190,670
Collective Allowance for Impairment
Balance At Shrawan 1 6,769,688 -
Impairment Loss For The Year:
Charge/(Reversal) For The Year (1,140,055) 6,769,688
Write-Offs
Other Movement
Balance At Ashadh End 5,629,633 6,769,688
Total Allowances For Impairment 45,954,721 29,960,358

4.8 Investment Securities

Particulars

"As on Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Investment Securities Measured At Amortized Cost

Investment In Equity Measured At FVTOCI

Total
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti-4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.8.1: Investment Securities Measured at Amortized Cost

Particulars

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Debt Securities

Government Bonds

Government Treasury Bills

Nepal Rastra Bank Bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank Deposits Instruments

Other

Less: Specific Allowances For Impairment

Total

4.8.2 : Investment in Equity Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Equity Instruments

Quoted Equity Securities

Unquoted Equity Securities

Total

4.8.3: Information Relating to Investment in Equities

Current Year

Previous Year

Particulars

Cost

"Fair Value" Cost "Fair Value"

Investment in Quoted Equity

Total
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
4.9 Current Tax Assets
Particulars "As on "Ason
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Current Tax Assets
Current Year Income Tax Assets 2,844,005 2,600,161
Tax Assets Of Prior Periods - -
Current Tax Liabilities -
Current Year Income Tax Liabilities - -
Tax Liabilities Of Prior Periods - -
Total 2,844,005 2,600,161
4.10 Investment Properties
Particulars i Ll
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Investment Properties Measured At Fair Value

Balance As On Shrawan 1

Addition/Disposal During The Year

Net Changes In Fair Value During The Year

Adjustment/Transfer

Net Amount

Investment Properties Measured At Cost

Balance As On Shrawan 1

Addition/Disposal During The Year

Adjustment/Transfer

Accumulated Depreciation

Accumulated Impairment Loss

Net Amount

Total
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
4.12 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Particulars Goodwill PurchaseiIOftwa';evelope d Other Total
Cost
As On Shrawan 1, 2079 - 2,487,680 2,487,680
Addition During The Year - - -
Acquisition - 126,560 126,560
Capitalization - - -
Disposal During The Year - - -
Adjustment/ Revaluation - - -
Balance As On Ashadh 31, 2080 - 2,614,240 2,614,240
Addition During The Year - - -
Acquisition - - -
Capitalization - - -
Disposal During The Year - - -
Adjustment/ Revaluation - - -
Balance As On Ashadh 31, 2081 - 2,614,240 2,614,240
Amortization And Impairment
As On Shrawan 1, 2079 - 703,362 703,362
Amortization Charge For The Year - 309,684 309,684
Impairment For The Year - - -
Disposals - - -
Adjusmtment - - -
Balance As On Ashadh 31, 2080 - 1,013,047 1,013,047
Amortization Charge For The Year - 314,826 314,826
Impairment For The Year - - -
Disposals - - -
Adjusmtment - - -
Balance As On Ashadh 31, 2081 - 1,327,872 1,327,872
Capital Work In Progress - -
Net Book Value
As On Ashadh End 2079 - 1,784,318 1,784,318
As On Ashadh 29, 2080 - 1,601,193 1,601,193
As On Ashadh 31, 2081 1,286,368 1,286,368
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.13 Deferred Tax

Particulars Deferred Tax | Deffered Tax Deffered Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences On Following Items
Loan And Advance To B/Fis - - -
Loans And Advances To Customers - - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - - -
Property & Equipment - 3,991,249 (3,991,249)
Intangible Assets - 166,042 (166,042)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 1,994,660 - 1,994,660
Lease Liabilities 3,832,745 - 3,832,745
Provisions - - -
Other Temporary Differences - - -
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences 5,827,405 4,157,290 1,670,114
Deferred Tax On Carry Forward Of Unused Tax Losses 5,749,772 - 5,749,772
Deferred Tax Due To Changes In Tax Rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) As On Year End Of 2081 - - 7,419,886
Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liabilities As On Shrawan 1 2080 2,686,402
Origination/(Reversal) During The Year 4,733,484
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Profit Or Loss (4,753,996)
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Other 20.512
Comprehensive Income !
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Directly In Equity -
Previous Year
particulars Deferred Tax De_ffergq Tax Deffer.ed Tax
Assets Liabilities Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences On Following Items
Loan And Advance To B/Fis - - -
Loans And Advances To Customers - - -
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - - -
Property & Equipment - 5,733,735 (5,733,735)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan - - -
Lease Liabilities 6,137,337 - 6,137,337
Provisions - - -
Other Temporary Differences 2,282,799 - 2,282,799
Deferred Tax On Temporary Differences 8,420,137 5,733,735 2,686,402
Deferred Tax on Carry Forward Of Unused Tax Losses - -
Deferred Tax Due To Changes In Tax Rate -
Net Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) As On Year End Of 2080 2,686,402
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liabilities) As On Shrawan 1, 2079 1,301,390
Origination/(Reversal) During The Year 1,385,012
Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Profit Or Loss (1,385,012)

Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Other
Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax Expense/(Income) Recognized In Directly In Equity

WX | arifer ufaeed, Roco/0e?

ST Gyt fadier e fa7., gHidl-, HTHver==is




Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
4.14 Other Assets
Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Assets Held For Sale - -
Other Non Banking Assets - -
Bills Receivable - -
Accounts Receivable 551,618 290,423
Accrued Income -

Prepayments And Deposits 1,701,767 2,918,910
Income Tax Deposit - -
Deferred Employee Expenditure - -
Others - -
Stationery Stock 1,915,447 2,555,122
Staff Advances 1,692,106 1,532,510
Other 1,257,818 3,791,515
Total 7,118,755 11,088,480

"Other assets includes the following receivables from employees against embezzelement of funds: a. Under
" "Accounts receivable" "an amount of NPR 3,003,729 due from an employee of Pokharibazar branch, as
per decision of the High Court, Biratnagar dated 2079.11/16. Although, 100% provision for this amount
was made in the previous year, it was not netted off against the receivable in that year. In the current
year, the provision amount has been offset against the receivable, and previous year figure's have been
regrouped accordingly. As a result, the net receivable under this item is Nil as of the end of the current year.
b. Under" "Other" "an amount of NPR 2,385,220 was due from an employee of Kachankabal branch, based on
legal deed signed on 2080/07/17. A 100% provision has been made during the current year and netted off against
the receivable. Consequently, the net receivable amount in relation to this item is Nil as at the end of current year.
Furthermore, a case has been filed by the Governemnt of Nepal against employees of the Rupani branch in connection
with banking offence amounting to NPR 18,299,526 (estimated). The case was filed on 2081/04/30 at the High Court,
Janakpur and is currently under litigation. Accordingly, neither receivable has been recognized nor related loan accounts
have been adjusted pending the final outcome of the court decision."

4.15 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

"Borrowing From BFls " - -

Settlement And Clearing Accounts - -

Other - -

Total - -

4.16 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Refinance from NRB - -

Standing Liquidity Facility - -

Lender of Last Resort Facility from NRB - -

Securities Sold under Repurchase Agreements - -

Other Payables to NRB - -

Total - -

4.17 Derivative Financial Instruments

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Held For Trading

Interest Rate Swap - -

Currency Swap - -

Forward Exchange Contract - -

Others - -

Held For Risk Management

Interest Rate Swap - -

Currency Swap - -

Forward Exchange Contract - -

Other - -

Total - -
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
4.18 Deposits from Customers
Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" AOCI LELEL IRl
(Restated)"
Institutions Customers:
Term Deposits - -
Call Deposits - -
Other - -
Individual Customers:
Term Deposits - -
Saving Deposits - -
Savings From Members 237,964,499 208,425,262
Other - -
Total 237,964,499 208,425,262

4.19 Borrowing

Particulars

"As on Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on Ashadh 31, 2080
(Restated)"

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Licensed Institutions

1,757,575,787

1,451,889,507

Other

Sub total

1,757,575,787

1,451,889,507

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Sub total

Total

1,757,575,787

1,451,889,507

4.20 Provisions

Particulars

"As on Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on Ashadh 31, 2080
(Restated)"

Provisions For Redundancy

Provision For Restructuring

Pending Legal Issues And Tax Litigation

Onerous Contracts

Other

Total
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.20.1 Movement in Provision

Particulars

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Balance At Shrawan 1

Provisions Made During The Year

Provisions Used During The Year

Provisions Reversed During The Year

Unwind of Discount

Balance at Ashadh end

4.21 Other Liabilities

Particulars "As on "Ason
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Liability For Employees Defined Benefit Obligations 3,168,875 2,005,027
Liability For Long-Service Leave 2,947,357 2,497,591
Short-Term Employee Benefits 3,224,429 1,733,382
Bills Payable - -
Creditors And Accruals 1,022,637 879,157
Interest Payable On Deposit - -
Interest Payable On Borrowing 2,372,138 -
Liabilities On Deferred Grant Income - -
Unpaid Dividend - -
Liabilities Under Lease - -
Employee Bonus Payable 328,158 723,492
Others
Refundable Service Charge 1,003,732 5,252,736
Lease Lilabilities 12,775,816 21,151,418
Others 6,243,459 7,901,937
Total 33,086,601 42,144,740
4.21.1 Defined Benefit Obligations
The amounts recognized in the statement of financial position are as follows:
"As on "As on

Particulars

Ashadh 31, 2081"

Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Present Value Of Funded Obligations

Total Present Value Of Obligations 6,116,232 4,502,618
Fair Value Of Plan Assets - -
Present Value Of Net Obligations 6,116,232 4,502,618
Recognized Liability For Defined Benefit Obligations 6,116,232 4,502,618

The Microfinance has done Actuarial Valuation of Defined Benefit Obligations through independent Actuary for the

first time in the current fiscal year and related opening liability has also been restated.

4.21.2 Plan Assets
Plan assets comprise:

Particulars

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Equity Securities

Government Bonds

Bank Deposit

Other

Total

Actual Return On Plan Assets
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.21.3 Movement in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations

Particulars

Ashadh 31, 2081"

Particulars ity s
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Defined Benefit Obligations at Shrawan 1 4,502,618 6,089,666
Actuarial Losses/(Gains) 197,492 (3,301,305)
Benefits Paid By The Plan (739,732) (917,222)
Current Service Costs and Interest 2,688,487 2,631,479
Defined Benefit Obligations at Ashadh End 6,648,865 4,502,618
4.21.4 Movement in the Fair Value of Plan Assets
"As on "As on

Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Fair Value Of Plan Assets At Shrawan 1

Contributions Paid Into The Plan

Benefits Paid During The Year

Actuarial (Losses) Gains

Expected Return On Plan Assets

Fair Value Of Plan Assets At Ashadh End

4.21.5 Amount Recognized in Profit or Loss

Particulars s ey
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Current Service Costs 2,275,212 2,068,373
Interest On Obligation 413,275 563,106
Expected Return On Plan Assets - -
Total 2,688,487 2,631,479
4.21.6 Amount Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Particulars s ey
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (68,372) (2,929,309)
Total (68,372) (2,929,309)
4.21.7: Actuarial Assumptions
Particulars e ey
Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Discount Rate 8% 10%
Expected Return On Plan Asset NA NA
Future Salary Increase 5% 5%
Withdrawal Rate 11% 11%
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081
4.22 Debt securities issued

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Debt Securities Issued Designated as at Fair ) )
Value Through Profit or Loss
Debt Securities Issued at Amortized Cost - -
Total - -
4.23 Subordinated Liabilities

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Redeemable Preference Shares - -
Irredeemable Cumulative Preference Shares ) )
(Liabilities Component)
Other - -
Total - -
4.24 Share capital

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Ordinary Shares 250,000,000 250,000,000
Convertible Preference Shares (Equity
Component Only)
Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity
Component Only)
Perpetual Debt (Equity Component Only)
Proposed Bonus Share
Total 250,000,000 250,000,000
4.24.1: Ordinary shares

Particulars "As on Ashadh 31, 2081" "As on Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"
Authorized Capital
3,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 300,000,000 300,000,000
Issued capital
2,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 250,000,000 250,000,000
Subscribed and paid up capital
2,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 each 250,000,000 250,000,000
Total 250,000,000 250,000,000

4.24.2: Shareholders Holding 0.5% or more Shares
As on Ashadh 31, 2081 As on Ashadh 31, 2080
Particulars
% of Holding | No of Shares | Amount % of Holding No of Shares | Amount

Kumari Bank limited 10.00% 250,000 25,000,000 10.00% 250,000 25,000,000
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd 10.00% 250,000 25,000,000 10.00% 250,000 25,000,000
Pushpa Jyoti Dhungana 2.00% 50,000 5,000,000 2.00% 50,000 5,000,000
Baburam Thapa 1.40% 35,000 3,500,000 1.40% 35,000 3,500,000
Krishna Kumar Shrestha 1.36% 34,000 3,400,000 1.36% 34,000 3,400,000
Ghanshyam Pandey 1.20% 30,000 3,000,000 1.20% 30,000 3,000,000
Bamdev Gauli 0.80% 20,000 2,000,000 0.80% 20,000 2,000,000
Gyanendra Subedi 0.72% 18,000 1,800,000 0.72% 18,000 1,800,000
Parbata Gautam 0.72% 18,000 1,800,000 0.72% 18,000 1,800,000
Sita Prasad Pokhrel 0.64% 16,000 1,600,000 0.64% 16,000 1,600,000
Rukmina Thapa 0.60% 15,000 1,500,000 0.60% 15,000 1,500,000
Lal chandra Upreti 0.60% 15,000 1,500,000 0.60% 15,000 1,500,000
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.24.3 Ordinary Share Ownership

As on Ashadh 31, 2081 As on Ashadh 31, 2080

Particulars

Percent

Amount

Percent

Amount

Domestic Ownership (Promoter)

Nepal Government

"A" Class Licensed Institutions

20.00%

50,000,000

20.00%

50,000,000

Other Licensed Institutions

Other Institutions

Other

41.00%

102,500,000

41.00%

102,500,000

Domestic Ownership (Public)

Nepal Government

A Class Licensed Institutions

Other Licensed Institutions

Other Institutions

Other

39.00%

97,500,000

39.000%

97,500,000

Foreign Ownership Promoter

Foreign Ownership Public

Total

100%

250,000,000

100%

250,000,000

4.25 Reserves

Particulars

As on Ashadh
31, 2081

As on Ashadh 31,
2080

Statutory General Reserve

4,431,500

4,431,500

Capital Reserve

Exchange Equalization Reserve

Investment Adjustment Reserve

Corporate Social Responsibility Reserve

170,670

Client Protection Fund

Capital redemption reserve

Regulatory Reserve

64,004,442

26,381,868

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Fair Value Reserve

Dividend Equalization Reserve

Actuarial Reserve

2,098,377

2,050,516

Special Reserve

Debenture Redemption Reserve

Other Reserve

Deferred Tax Reserve

7,419,886

2,686,402

Staff Training Fund

Total

78,048,064

35,720,956
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31, 2081

4.26 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

Particulars

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Contingent Liabilities

Undrawn And Undisbursed Facilities

Capital Commitment

Lease Commitment

Litigation

Others

Total

4.26.1 Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the institution but provision has not been made in financial

statements.

Particulars

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Capital Commitments In Relation To Property And Equipment

Approved And Contracted For

Approved But Not Contracted For

Sub Total

Capital Commitments In Relation To Intangible Assets

Approved And Contracted For

Approved But Not Contracted For

Sub Total

Total

4.26.2 Lease Commitments

Particulars

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"As on
Ashadh 31, 2080 (Restated)"

Operating Lease Commitments

Future Minimum Lease Payments Under Non Cancellable
Operating Lease, Where The Institution Is Lessee

Not Later Than 1 Year

Later Than 1 Year But Not Later Than 5 Years

Later Than 5 Years

Sub Total

Finance Lease Commitments (Undiscounted)

Future Minimum Lease Payments Under Non Cancellable
Operating Lease, Where Institution

Not Later Than 1 Year

Later Than 1 Year But Not Later Than 5 Years

Later Than 5 Years

Sub total

Grand Total

4.26.3 Litigation

The microfinance has not been a party to any litigation claims during the fiscal year 2080.81
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Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
For the Period Ended Ashadh 31, 2081

4.27 Interest Income

Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Cash And Cash Equivalent

2,296,414

3,046,634

Due From Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement With Bank And Financial Institutions

Loan And Advances To Financial Institutions

Loans And Advances To Customers

282,503,198

300,810,872

Investment Securities

Loan And Advances To Staff

Other

Total Interest Income

284,799,613

303,857,506

4.28 Interest Expenses

"For the period ended

"For the period ended

e Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080"
Due To Bank And Financial Institutions - -
Due To Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits From Customers 16,609,089 16,379,069
Borrowing 191,526,967 213,981,971
Debt Securities Issued - -
Subordinated Liabilities - -
Other - 2,464
Total Interest Expense 208,136,056 230,363,503

4.29 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Loan Administration Fees

Service Fees

28,419,058

16,697,402

Commitment Fees

Card Issuance Fees

Prepayment And Swap Fees

Remittance Fees

Brokerage Fees

Other Fees And Commission Income

1,727,609

19,959,459

Total Fees and Commission Income

30,146,667

36,656,861

4.30 Fees and Commission Expense

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Brokerage

ATM Mangement Fees

Visa Master Card Fees

Guarantee Commission Fees

Brokerage

DD/ TT/ Swift Fees

Remittance Fees and Commission

Other Fees and Commission Expense

Total Fees and Commission
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
For the Period Ended Ashadh 31, 2081

4.31 Net Trading Income

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Changes In Fair Value Of Trading Assets

Gain/Loss On Disposal Of Trading Assets

Interest Income On Trading Assets

Dividend Income On Trading Assets

Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction

Other

Net Trading Income

4.32 Other Operating Income

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Foreign Exchange Revaluation Gain

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Investment Securities

Fair Value Gain/Loss On Investment Properties

Dividend On Equity Instruments

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Property And Equipment

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Investment Property

Operating Lease Income

Gain/Loss On Sale Of Gold And Silver

Other

Total

4.33 Impairment Charge/ (Reversal) for Loan and Other Losses

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Loan And Advances To BFls

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Loan And Advances To Customer

15,994,363

(1,276,578)

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Financial Investment

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Placement With Banks And
Financial Institutions

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Property And Equipment

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Goodwill And Intangible Assets

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Investment Properties

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) On Other Assets

1,042,000

Total

17,036,363

(1,276,578)
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

For the Period Ended Ashadh 31, 2081

4.34 Personnel Expense

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements

Particulars " For the period ended " For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081 " Ashadh 31, 2080 "
Salary 31,208,881 34,927,917
Allowances 32,858,103 29,610,241
Gratuity Expense 1,284,462 524,868
Provident Fund 3,121,822 3,028,128
Uniform - 1,000
Training & Development Expense 1,407,654 1,727,354
Leave Encashment 1,669,890 1,912,019
Medical - -
Insurance 400,483 396,883
Employees Incentive - -
Cash-Settled Share-Based Payments - -
Pension Expense - -
Finance Expense Under NFRSs - -
Other Expenses Related To Staff 201,525 245,839
Subtotal 72,152,819 72,374,249
Employees Bonus - -
Grand total 72,152,819 72,374,249

4.35 Other Operating Expense

" For the period ended

" For the period ended

Particulars Ashadh 31, 2081 " Ashadh 31, 2080 "
Directors' Fee 588,500 472,000
Directors' Expense 364,568 3,000
Auditors' Remuneration 339,000 700,600
Other Audit Related Expense 350,000 1,021,182
Professional And Legal Expense 534,000 318,829
Technical Service Expenses 1,165,203 1,076,707
Office Administration Expense 4.35.1 28,408,899 21,236,061
Operating Lease Expense - 450,855
Operating Expense Of Investment Properties - -
Commision & Discount - -
Corporate Social Responsibility Expense - -
Client Protection Expenses - -
Onerous Lease Provisions - -
Other - -
Finance cost on Lease Liabilities 1,780,737 2,452,076
Total 33,530,907 27,731,311
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
For the Period Ended Ashadh 31, 2081

4.35.1 Office Administration Expense

"For the period ended

"For the period ended

Particulars Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080"

Water And Electricity 885,785 846,062
Repair And Maintenance -
Building - -
Vehicle 478,670 347,335
Computer And Accessories 74,761 30,850
Office Equipment And Furniture 368,094 320,170
Other - -
Insurance 926,780 991,836
Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax 1,109,537 1,037,323
Printing And Stationery 1,363,785 1,343,030
News Paper, Books And Journals - -
Advertisement 286,400 470,579
Donation - -
Security Expense - -
Deposit And Loan Guarantee Premium - -
Travel Allowance And Expense 2,456,751 3,952,876
Loan Security Premium Expenses - -
Loan Processing Fee Expenses - -
Hospitality Expenses 171,153 200,908
Annual/Special General Meeting Expense 181,209 105,670
Others

Fuel Expenses 3,270,084 1,712,422
Registration & Renewal Expenses 507,095 237,550
Transportation Expenses 58,557 43,600
Share Registarar Expenses 50,000 50,000
Service Charges Expense 7,296,837 3,731,872
Office Cleaning Expenses 3,949,503 3,389,494
Bank Charges 4,362,697 1,861,247
Share Issue Expenses - -
Other Expenses 611,201 563,238
Total 28,408,899 21,236,061

4.36 Depreciation & Amortization

"For the period ended

"For the period ended

Particulars Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080"
Depreciation On Property And Equipment 12,995,996 11,711,278
Depreciation On Investment Property - -
Amortization Of Intangible Assets 314,826 23,657
Total 13,310,822 11,734,935

4.37 Non Operating Income

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Recovery of Loan Written Off

Other Income

Total
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Aviyan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited

Panauti- 4, Kavrepalanchowk
Notes To Financial Statements
For the Period Ended Ashadh 31, 2081

4.38 Non Operating Expense

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

"Loan Written Off

Redundancy Provision

Expense Of Restructuring

Total

4.39 Income Tax Expense

"For the period ended

"For the period ended

Particulars Ashadh 31, 2081" Ashadh 31, 2080"

Current Tax Expense

Current Year - -
Adjustments For Prior Years - -
Deferred Tax Expense (4,753,996) (1,385,012)
Origination And Reversal Of Temporary Differences 995,776 (1,385,012)
Changes In Tax Rate - -
Recognition Of Previously Unrecognized Tax Losses (5,749,772)

Total Income Tax Expense (4,753,996) (1,385,012)

4.39.1: Reconciliation of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit

Particulars

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2081"

"For the period ended
Ashadh 31, 2080"

Profit Before Tax

(24,466,692)

971,959

Tax Amount At Tax Rate Of 30 %

Add: Tax Effect Of Expenses That Are Not Deductible For
Tax Purpose

Less: Tax effect on exempt income

Add/(Less):Tax effect on NFRS adjustments

Less: Tax effect of expenses that are deductible for tax
purpose

Total Income Tax Expense

Effective Tax Rate

0%

0%

4.40 Previous year figures have been restated, where required.
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Disclosure and Additional Information
Risk Management

In particular, the microfinance program provides financial services to the needy and poor households. Since people
in suchhouseholds lack awareness and business skills, one has been very careful while doing financial transactions
with such people. This type of financial service is also more prone to risk as financial services have to be provided
by making the person aware and capable of such services. Therefore, identification of risk has been carried out and
adequate control system has been adopted in order to mitigate such current and possible future risks in the Microfinance.
The robust risk management capabilities are imperative in order to achieve an effective risk management framework
and contain the risks associated with the business, a fully functional Risk Management Committee is responsible
for identifying reporting, controlling and managing credit risk, operational risk, market risk & liquidity risk. The Risk
Management Committee oversees global, macro, micro and departmental level risk that arise out of daily business
operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management Com-
mittee and the Board committee to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Management Committee is an independent committee of the Board of Directors that has, as its sole and
exclusivefunction, responsibility for the risk management policies of the Microfinance and oversight of implementa-
tion of risk management framework of Microfinance. The committee assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling
its oversight responsibilities with regard to risk appetite that the Microfinance is able and willing to assume in
its exposures and business activities, risk management, compliance framework, and governance structure that
supports it. It periodicallyreviews the risk management process to ensure its integrity, accuracy, and reason-
ableness. It also reviews whether the internal control and risk management system is adequate or not to en-
sure well-ordered and prudent conduct of business. The committee is to review the overall risk management
structure and monitor the effectiveness of the riskmanagement system.

Risk Governance

Microfinance implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising to the mi-
crofinanceand has trained risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality, capacity
building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture. The Risk Management
Committee is responsiblefor the establishment of, and compliance with, policies relating to Operation risk &
Credit risk.

The Microfinance’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the Mi-
crofinance's risk blanket is dropped down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation,
risk mitigation, and control/ monitoring in line with NRB directives, and has effectively implemented the same.
The effectiveness of the Microfinance’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its commit-
tees, seniormanagement, and internal audit committee.

1.1.1.Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk to meet short term financial demands. This usually occurs due to the inability to con-
vert a security or hard asset to cash without a loss of capital and/or income in the process. Liquidity risk arises
because of the possibility that the Microfinance might be unable to meet its payment obligations when they
fall due, as a result ofmismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.
Such scenarios could occur when funding needed for liquid asset positions is not available to the Microfinance
on acceptable terms. Due to lack of liquidity, entities are not able to invest as per the demand of the customer,
they are not able to repay the savings and other legal obligations on time. Therefore, the microfinance has
managed the liquidity as per its requirement in time to prevent such a situation.

5.1.2 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall interest rates will reduce the value of a bond or other
fixed- rate investment. The Microfinance will take the following measures to minimize the risk arising from
interest rates:

a. Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rates has been included in the assets and liabil-
ities.
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b. When analyzing the difference in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities does not
match, the amount of cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

¢. In order to manage and minimize the interest rate risk, the Microfinance has prepared quarterly (Octo-
ber, December, March and mid-July) details and submitted them to the Supervision Department of Nepal
Rastra Bank within fifteen days after the end of the quarter.

5.1.3 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability that any creditor will not be able to repay the loan as per the condition ac-
cepted bythe borrower. Credit is the main wealth or sources of income of any financial institution. The future
of the financial institution is at stake when the borrower is unable to repay the loan borrower had agreed at the
time of taking the loan.Therefore, it is necessary to study the impacting indicators to get information about
the condition of the loan at risk. In order to prevent the loss of the loan invested and to minimize the risks
related to it, Standard loan disbursement procedure is followed to reduce the risk accordingly. Since every
employee involved in the process of approvingthe loan and investing will be assigned a certain responsibility,
the concerned employee will have to invest the loan realizing their responsibility. The following procedures/
practices have been followed:

e Analyze the Requirement and Repayment Capacity for the demanded loan,
e Investin loans based on disciplinary records of the borrower,

e  Monitor utility of the borrowed fund in the following months of borrowing and ensuring the fund is
utilized forincome generating activities/businesses,

e Motivated members to increase savings,

e Taking details of the borrower's business and income and expenditure at the time of loan application, for
businessloans,

e Taking necessary documents of secured property, if collateral loan,
e C(lassify the loans and arrange the loss provision as per the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank,
e Disbursement of loans within the limits prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank,

e  Continuously monitor and inspect the loan from the unit manager, branch manager and monitoring
level. Ifthe interest is not paid on time or with delay, the branch should report to the monitoring, the
monitoring to the regional manager and the regional manager to the chief executive officer within 24
hours with detailed details.

e Inthe monthly performance appraisal of the staffs, a definite score will be given in this title including the
title of loan recovery of the branch to be monitored.

e Each branch will be audited twice a year. While conducting such audit, it is compulsory for Internal
Auditorsto inspect the monthly meetings of few of the units and submit the details observed in meetings
through Audit report, either observed compliance and other discrepancies or not.

5.1.4 Operational Risk

The risk that arises during the day-to-day operations of an entity is called operating risk. In this program, small
butlargenumber of transactions has been done, decentralized working method has been adopted, more focus
has been given on area expansion, priority has been given to cost reduction, Due to lack of integrated informa-
tion system, expansionof programs in rural areas with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology
to provide services as per the needs of the customers, there is always a possibility of operational risk in this
program. The entity has arranged the necessary staff to carry out various responsibilities for daily operations.
All the employees have to carry out theirpost responsibilities in the working process within the policy rules
specified by the entity. But sometimes due to the negligence of the employees and personal interests, the or-
ganization is at risk when it goes beyond the policy rules. This type of risk is likely to reduce the entity's income,
the increase entity's credit risk (Reputation Risk). Since the operational risk is due to internal factors, this risk
can be reduced only if the internal control system is strengthened.
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5.1.5 Market Risk

The Microfinance recognizes market risk as the possibility for loss of earnings or economic value to the Mi-
crofinancecaused due to adverse changes in the market level of interest rates or prices of securities (equity),
foreign exchange rates and volatilities of those prices. Microfinance has an Asset Liability Management Com-
mittee (ALCO) which meets periodically to discuss product pricing for deposits and advances and maturity
profiles of assets and liabilities,articulating interest rate, view of Microfinance, funding policy and balance sheet
management. After Understanding the market conditions and demands, the Board and the management bring
programs to suit the potentials and conditions ofthe market, and reduce the risk by providing appropriate
responsibilities to the employees from the top to the bottombased on their capabilities. For this, the internal
control system has been strengthened.

The following has been considered in market analysis:
e Information about competitors' services (programs) and interest rates
e Attitude of the members towards the organization
e Perception of other banks and financial institutions towards this microfinance
e  Cost of service
e  Fluctuations from changes in policy rules
e  Strategies adopted by other organizations to attract their customers
e  Customer dropout/retention rate
5.1.6 Institutional or Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is often a major factor in determining a company's worth, particularly observable if the company
experiences a sharp decline in a short period of time. Due to this and its influence on compliance risk, it is a
leading factor in modern risk management. In order to manage this risk, the following things has been consid-
ered:

e  Strategies has been decided or modified according to the overall economic and social environment of the
country,

e  Keeping abreast of the services provided by their competitors and their status,

e  Providing service facilities as much as possible without giving in to the expectations and desires of our
customers

e Adopting appropriate strategies in resource mobilization.
5.1.7 Internal Control Risk

The Board and Management is committed to managing risks and in controlling its business and financial activ-
ities ina manner which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance
resilience to external events. To achieve this, the Board and management has adopted policies and procedures
of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/monitoring.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Audit. The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the entity's system
of internal control during the year and provided feedback to the Board as appropriate. The entity has its own
Internal Audit function to maintain independency on the internal control system of institution. The Internal
Audit Departmentmonitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control struc-
tures across the Company through its program of business/unit audits. The Internal Audit function is focused
on the areas of greatest risk as determined by a risk-based assessment methodology. Internal Audit reports
are quarterly forwarded to the Audit Committee. The findings of all audits are reported to the Chief Executive
Officer and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures.

5.1.8 Compliance Risk

The Microfinance is committed to follow best practices and market standards in the areas of accountability,
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transparency and business ethics. It aims for zero tolerance of misconduct. In the day-to-day operations the
three linesof defense model defines the roles and responsibilities for compliance and integrity risk in the Mi-
crofinance. The firstline of defense lies with the respective Microfinance departments and units, which are
responsible for ensuring that compliance risks are identified, understood and reported to the management
and to Compliance Officer. The second line of defense lies with Compliance Officer, which assesses and mon-
itors the compliance and integrity risks and coordinates its control activities with the Risk Management Unit.
The Chief Compliance Officer reports to the CEO.Internal Audit Department is the third line of defense. The Com-
pliance function assists the Microfinance in identifying, assessing, monitoring and reporting on compliance risks
in matters relating to the institution, its operations and the personal conduct of staff members.

5.1.9 Fair value of financial assets and Liabilities

5.2

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities,
observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable
market transactionsand market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measure-
ment in both cases is the same — to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to transfer
the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market condi-
tions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset
or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access atthe measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded
using Level 1 inputs.

Level 2- Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability,either directly or indirectly.

Level 3-Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The following table shows an analysis of
financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy:

. 2080-81 2079-80
Particulars
Level 1 Level 11 Level 111 Level I | Level I1 Level 111
Quoted Equities -
Unquoted Equities
Quoted Mutual Funds - -
Total - -

Capital management

The Microfinance's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is
adequatelycapitalized to withstand even in severe macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licensed in-
stitution providing financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(i) Qualitative disclosures

Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the Microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedures and structures to
manage all material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well
as strategies formaintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient
process of managing all material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The
Microfinance BODsapproved risk management policies for proper governance. The Microfinance has developed a
comprehensive ICAAPdocument which is subject to review every year. The ICAAP has two major components;
first is an internal processto identify, measure, manage and report risks to which the microfinance is exposed or
could be exposed in the future;and second is an internal process to plan and manage a microfinance’s capital so as
to ensure adequate capital. The microfinance prepares the ICAAP report annually complying with the NRB require-
ment. The report is reviewed and analyzed by Risk Management Committee and Board.
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(ii) Quantitative disclosures
Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy

o Tier 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Amount (NPR)

Paid Up Equity Share Capital

250,000,000

Irredeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares

Share Premium

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares

Statutory General Reserves

4,431,500

Retained Earnings

(76,971,722)

Un-Audited Current Year Cumulative Profit

Special Reserve Fund

Capital Adjustment Reserves

Dividend Equalization Reserves

Capital Redemption Reserves Fund

Deferred Tax Reserve

7,419,886

Less: Goodwill

Less: Intangible Assets

Less: Fictitious Assets

Less: Deferred Tax Assets

(7,419,886)

Less:

Investment In Equity of Licensed Financial Institutions

Less:

Investment In Equity of Institutions with Financial Interests

Less:

Investment In Equity of Institutions in Excess of Limits

Less:

Investments Arising Out of Underwriting Commitments

Less:

Purchase Of Land & Building in Excess of Limit & Utilized

Less

: Reciprocal Crossholdings

Less:

Other Deductions

Total Tier 1 Capital

177,459,778

o Tier 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components:

Particulars

Amount (NPR)

General Loan Loss Provision

13,591,237

Additional Loan Loss Provision

Cumulative And/Or Redeemable Preference Share

Subordinated Term Debt

Hybrid Capital Instruments

Exchange Equalization Reserves

Investments Adjustment Reserves

Assets Revaluation Reserves

Special Reserve Fund

Total Tier 2 Capital

13,591,237
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o Total Qualifying Capital

Particulars Amount (NPR)
Core Capital (Tier 1) 177,459,778
Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 13,591,237
Total Capital Fund 191,051,015
o Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA)At the month end of Ashadh, 2081
a. On-Balance-Sheet Items
S.N. Description W((-_;g)ht il:;geun:tzfvr;:‘; RWA
1 | Cash Balance 0 3,120,384 -
2 | Gold (Tradable) 0 - -
3 Nrb Balance 0 - -
4 | Investment To Govt. Bond 0 - -
5 | Investment To Nrb Bond 0 - -
6 | Loan Against Own Fd 0 - -
7 | Loan Against Govt. Bond 0 - -
8 | Accrued Interests on Govt. Bond 0 - -
9 Investment To Youth and Small Entrepre- 0 i i
neurs Self-Employment Fund
10 :SnasI;:uc;OOnr; Domestic Banks and Financial 20 69,507,416 13,901,483
11 Loan Against Other Banks' and Financial 20 ) i
Institutions' Fd
12 | Foreign Bank Balance 20 - -
13 | Money At Call 20 - -
14 Loan Against Internationally Rated Bank 20 i i
Guarantee
15 | Investment To Internationally Rated Banks 20 - -
16 | Inter-Bank Lending 20 - -
17 | Investment On Shares/Debentures/Bonds 100 - -
18 | Other Investments 100 - -
19 | Loans & Advances, Bills Purchase/Discount 100 2,125,374,281 | 2,125,374,281
20 | Fixed Assets 100 25,073,447 25,073,447
21 Z;tslz:)i;(er]ss'cef){eceivables (Toral Ir - 8 - Inter- 100 83 913,407 83,913,407
22 | Net Non-Banking Asset 100 - -
23 | Other Assets (Except Advance Tax Payment) 100 8,405,123 8,405,123
22 Eee:(;ilins;tﬁe/liie;igsntial Housing Loans Ex- 150 i i
Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A) 2,315,394,059 | 2,256,667,742
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b. Off-Balance-Sheet Items

S.N. | Description Weight (%) | Amount (NPR.) RWA
1 | Bills Collection 0 - -
2 Forward Foreign Exchange Contract 10 - -
3 L/C With Maturity Less Than Six Months 20 i i
(Outstanding Value)
4 Guarantee Against International Rated 20 i i
Bank'S Counter Guarrantee
5 L/C With Maturity More Than Six Months 50 i i
(Outstanding Value)
6 Bic! I?ond, Performance Bond and Under- 50 i i
writing
7 | Loan Sale with Repurchase Agreement 50 - -
Advance Payment Guarantee 100 - -
9 | Financial And Other Guarantee 100 - -
10 | Irrevocable Loan Commitment 100 - -
11 | Possible Liabilities for Income Tax 100 - -
12 ﬁlclcTepriz;SZ Possible Liabilities Including 100 i i
13 | Rediscounted Bills 100 - -
14 ir;;r)::id Portion of Partly Paid Share Invest- 100 i i
15 | Unpaid Guarantee Claims 200 - -
16 é\i’;‘ko(uzr; g’fist';ﬁrs‘:'tz;ad for Operational 100 46,307,881 46,307,881
Total Off-Balance-sheet Items (B) 46,307,881 46,307,881
Total Risk Weighted Assets (A) + (B) 2,361,701,940 | 2,302,975,623
e Minimum Capital Fund to be Maintained based on the Risk Weighted Assets
Minimum capital Fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets: Percentage
Minimum Capital Fund Required (8.0 % of RWA) 8.00%
Minimum Core Capital Required (4.0 % of RWA) 4.00%
Capital Fund maintained (in %) 8.30%
Core Capital maintained (in %) 7.71%

5.3 Classification of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The financial assets and liabilities are classified in Amortized Cost, fair value through profit and loss and fair
valuethrough other comprehensive income. The following table exhibit the classification of financial assets
and liabilities:
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5.4

5.5

Particulars

As on Ashadh End 2081

Amortized Cost
(NPR)

FVTPL

FVTOCI

Total (NPR)

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

60,922,953

60,922,953

Statutory Balances & due from NRB

11,704,847

11,704,847

Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions

Derivative Financial Instruments

Other Trading Assets

Loans and Advances to MFIs & Co-op-
eratives

Loans and Advances to Customers

2,163,332,967

2,163,332,967

Investment Securities

Investment in Subsidiaries

Investment in Associates

Investment Property

Other Assets

71,18,755

71,18,755

Total Financial Assets

2,243,079,523

2,243,079,523

Financial Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Derivative Financial Instruments

Deposits from Customers

237,964,499

237,964,499

Borrowings

1,757,575,787

1,757,575,787

Other Liabilities

33,086,601

33,086,601

Debt Securities Issued

Total Financial Liabilities

2,028,626,887

2,028,626,887

Operating Segment information

5.4.1 General information

A component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and
incurlosses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any other components of the
microfinance,whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about
resources allocationto each segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information
is available is termed as operating segment.

Though the Microfinance has reportable segments as per NFRS 8, information relating to the operating seg-
ments has not been disclosed due to difficulty in allocation of common expenses.

5.4.2 Information about major customers
The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity’s revenue.
Share options and share based payment

The Microfinance does not extend the share options and share based payment to any of its employees. Thus,
during the reporting period the Microfinance does not have any the transactions that are to be accounted as
per NFRS 2 “Share Based Payments”.
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5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment
Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.26.
5.7 Related Party Disclosures
5.7.1 List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
The following parties have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:
S.N. Name Relationship
1 Baburam Thapa Charmain
2 Bhojraj Bhattarai Director
3 Prabin Jha Director
4 Keshav Thapa Independent Director
5 Neemu Sherpa Director
6 Umesh Dahal Public Director
7 Narayan Prasad Prasai Public Director
Key Management Personnel:
Tejendra Sharma Lamsal : Chief Executive Officer
Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities are stated as follows
S.N. BOD Members Name Total Allowance for FY 2080-81
1. Baburam Thapa 65,000
2. Bhojraj Bhattrai 60,000
3. Prabin Jha 60,000
4, Kesav Thapa 65,000
5. Neemu Sherpa 65,000
6. Umesh Dahal 65,000
7. Narayan Dahal 60,000
Total 440,000
5.8 Additional disclosure of non-consolidated entities

The microfinance doesn’t have any subsidiaries & associates. So, additional disclosure is not required.
5.9 Events after reporting date

No events other than finalization of profit figures and determination of amounts for Income Tax, Staff Bonus
and Related Appropriations are observed which require the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after
Reporting Period".
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Management Team

Mr. Tejendra Sharma Lamsal
Chief Executive Officer

Krishna Bahadur Khadka Biratpati Nath Gachhadar Mr. Top Bdr. Thapa
Chief of Human Resource/ Chief of Credit & Chief of Operation/Monitoring/
Training Departmen Recovery Department Finance Department
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Manishrestha hi ?Ar.fRosan Dzangi . (I:r;]drfa Ff’rlasad P?Zdzy
Chief of Information Chief of General Service ief of Internal Audit
Department Department

Technology Department

Mr. Manoj Acharya Mr. Manoj Kumar Thakur
Jhumka Area Dhalkebar Area
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Mr. Manoj Thapa Magar Mr. Ram Pukar Kushwaha Mr. Hemraj Gelal
Bhurigau Area Rupani Area Damak Area
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